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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
IN THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF MICHIGAN -- SOUTHERN DIVISION

JUDGE : Tarnow, Arthur J.

MICHELLE FRANCO, DECK : S. Division Civil Deck
DATE : 12/21/2005 @ 11:58:49
- CASE NUMBER : 2:05CV74829
Plamtitt, IFP V. FRANCO V. BIRD ET AL (DA)

~Y&-
DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

ROBERT W. BIRID, and

RYAN & REED, INC., ‘ T -
WAGISTRATE JUDGE KOMIVE:

Defendants.

Adam G. Taub (P48703)

Lyngklip & Taub Consumer Law Group, PLC
Attorncy For Michelle Franco

24500 Northwestern Highway, Ste. 206
Southfield, MI 48075

(248) 746-3790

COMPLAINT & JURY DEMAND

JURISDICTION

1. This court has jurisdiction under thc FDCPA, 15 U.S.C. §1692k(d) and 28 U.S.C.
§81331,1337.
2 This courl may exercise supplemental junisdiction over the related state law claims arising
out of the same nucleus of operative facts which give rise to the Federal law claims.
PARTIES

3. The Plaintiff to this lawsuit is Michelle Franco who resides in Port Huron, Michigan.



4,

1.
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The Defendants to this lawsuit are as follows:

d, Robert W. Bird (“Robert W. Bird™), an attorney doing business in Michigan at 121 1
State Road 436, Suite 111, Casselberry, FL 32707, and who may be served with
process at 1211 State Road 436, Suite 111, Cassclberry, FL 32707 under Florida
state law.

b. Ryan & Reed, In¢. (“Ryan & Reed”) which is a corporation doing business in at 510
Bering Dr. Suite 300, Houston, TX 77057, and whose resident agent, National
Registcred Agents, Inc. maintains its office at 1614 Sidney Baker Street , Kerrville,
TX 78026.

VENUE
The transactions and occu.rrcnces which giverise to this action occurred in St, Clair County.
Venuc is proper in the Eastern District of Michigan.
GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

Some time prior to August 5, 2005, Ryan & Reed was engaged by Bluc Water College of

Cosmetology to collect a debt allegedly owed by Michelle Franco.

Some time prior to August 5, 2005, Robert W. Bird was engaged by Ryan & Recd, Inc. to

collect a debt allegedly owed by Michelle Franco.

Priorto August 5, 2005, Ryan & Reed communicated with Michelle Franco for the first time.

On or about August 5, 2005, Robert W. Bird cormmmunicated with Michellc Franco for the

first time.

As set forth herein, these Defendants violated state and federal collection practices Taws.
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COUNT 1 - Fair Debt Collection Practices Act (Robert W. Bird)

Ms. Franco incorporates the preceding allegations by reference.

13. At all relevant times Robert W. Bird — in the ordinary course of its busincss - regularly
engaged in the practice of collecting debts on behalf of other individuals or entities.

14, Roberlt W. Bird is a "debt collector" under the IPair Debt Collection Practices Act
("FDCPA™), 15 U.8.C. §1692a(6).

15. Robert W. Bird has engaged in violations of the FDCPA including, but not limited to the

following:

a. Robert W, Bird used generally falsc, misleading or unfair methods to collect the
debt., in violation of the general prohibitions in 15 U.8.C. §1692c.

b. Robert W. Bird ma(ie a false representation of-- (A) the character, amount, or legal
status of the debt; or  (B) any services rendered or compensation which may be
lawfully received by Robert W. Bird for the collection of the debt, in vielation of 15
U.S.C. §1692e(2).

C. Robert W. Bird made false representations in violation of 15 U.S.C. §1692¢(3).

d The representation or implication that nonpayment of uny debt will result in the arrest
or imprisonment of any person or the scizure, gamishment, attachment, or sale of any
property or wages of any person unless such action is lawful and the debt collector
or creditor intends to take such action, in violation of 15 U.8.C. §1692e(4).

£, The threat to take any action that cannot legally be taken or that is not intended to be

taken, in violation of 15 U.8.C. §1692¢(5).
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Robert W. Bird uscd false representations or deceptive means to collect or attempt

to collect the debt or to obtain information concerning Ms.Franco, in violation of 15
U.S.C. §1692e(10).

a. Robert W, Bird used unfair or unconscionable means to collect or attempt to collect
the debt, in violation of the general prohibition in 15 U.S.C. 1692(f).

h. Robert W. Bird collected an amount without express authorization under the
agreement crcating the debt or other statutory authority in violation of 15 U.S.C.
1692(£)(1).

16.  Ms. Franco has suffered damages as a result of Robert W. Bird's violations of the FDCPA.

COUNT II — Michigan Debt Collection Practices Act (Robert W, Bird)

7. Ms. Franco incorporates the preceding allegations by reference.
18.  Robert W, Bird is a "regulated person" under the Michigan Debt Collection Practices Act
("MDCPA"), M.C.L, § 445.251(g)(xi).
19. Robert W. Bird violated the Michigan Collection Practices Act, M.C L. § 445.251 et seq. by:
a. Communicating with a debtor in a mislcading or deceptive manner in violation of
M.C.L. §445.252(a).
b. Making an inaccurate, misleading, untruc, or deceptive statement or claim in a
communication to collect a debt in violation of M.C.L. §445.252(e).
c. Misrepresenting in a communication with a debtor one or more of the following in
violation of M.C.L. §445.252(1).:
i. The legal status of a legal action heing taken or threatened.

ii. The legal rights of the creditor or debtor.



20.
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iii. That the nonpayment of a debt will result in the debtor's amest or

1mprisonment, or the seizurc, gamishment, attachment, or sale of the debtor's

property.
iv. That accounts have been tumed over to innocent purchasers for value.
d. Failing to implement a procedure designed to prevent a violation by an employee in

violation of M.C.L. §445.252(q).

€. Employing a person required to be licensed under article 9 of Act No. 299 of the
Public Acts of 1980, being sections 339.901 to 339.916 of the Michigan Compiled
Laws, to collect a claim unless that person is licensed under article 9 of Act No. 299
of the Public Acts of 1980 in violation of M.C.L. §445.252(s).

Ms. Franco has suffered damages as a result of Robert W. Bird's violations of the Michigan

Collection Practices Act. -

COUNT _III — Fair Debt Collection Practices Act (Rvan & Reed

Ms. Franco incorporates the preceding allcgations by reference.

At all relevant times Ryan & Reed — in the ordinary course of its business — regularly
engaged in the practice of collecting debts on behalf of other individuals or entities.

Ryan & Reed is a "debt collector” under the Lair Debt Collection Practices Act ("FDCPA™),
15 U.S.C. §1692a(6).

Ryan & Rced has engagecli‘ in violations of the FDCPA including, but not limited to the
following:

a. Commumcating with any person other than Ms.Franco for the purpose of acquiring

location information about Ms.Franco, Ryan & Reed stated that Ms.Franco owed a
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debt, in violation of 15 U.S.C. §1692b(2).

Ryan & Reed - without the prior consent of the consumer given directly to Ryan &
Reed or the express permission of a court of competent jurisdiction - Ryan & Reed
communicated with Ms Franco in connection with the collection of a debt at unusuat
or inconvenient, times or places in violation of 15 U.S.C. §1692¢(a)(1).

Ryan & Reed uscd obscene or profanc language or language the natural consequence
of which is (o abuse the hearer or reader, in violation of 15 U.8.C. §1692d(2).
Ryan & Reed caused Ms.Franco's telephone to ring or engaged any Ms.Franco
telephone conversation repeatedly or continuously with intent to annoy, abuse, or
harass her, in violation of 15 U.8.C. §1692d(5).

Ryan & Reed, through iy agents, placed telephone calls without meaningful
disclosurc of the caller's identity, in violation of 15 U.8.C. §1692d(6).

Ryan & Reed used generally false, misleading or unfair mcthods to collect the debt.,
in violation of the general prohibitions in 15 U.S.C. §1692¢.

Ryan & Reed made a false representation of-- (A) the character, amount, or legal
status of the debt; or (B) any services rendered or compensation which may be
lawfully received by Ryan & Reed for the collection of the debt, in violation of 15
US.C. §1692e(2).

Ryan & Reed made false representations or implied that an individual was an
attorney or that any communication is from an attorney, in violation of 15 U.S.C.
§1692e(3).

The representation or implication that nonpayment of any debt will result in the arrest

6
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m.

n.

or imprisonment of any person or the seizure, garnishment, attachment, or sale of any
property or wages of any person unless such action is lawful and the debt collector
or creditor intends to take such action, in violation of 15 U.8.C. §1692e(4),

Ryan & Reed threatened to take action that cannot legally be taken or that is not
intended to be taken, in violation of 15 U.S8.C. §1692¢(5).

Ryan & Recd communicated or threatened to communicate credit information which
is known or which should be known to be false, in violation of 15 U.8.C. §1692e(8).
Ryan & Reed used falsc representations or deceptive means to collect or attempt to
collect the debt or to obtain information concerning Ms.Franco, in violation of 15
11.5.C. §1692¢(10).

Ryan & Reed colleceted an amount without express authorization under the agrecment
creating the debt or other statutory authority in violation of 15 U.8.C. 1692(f)(1).
Causing charges to be made to any person for communications by concealment of the
true purpose of the communication. Such charges include, but are not limited to,
collect telephone calls and telegram fees.

(6)  Taking or threatening to take any nonjudicial action to cffect dispossession
or disablement of property if--

L. (A)  there is no present right to possession of the property claimed as

collateral through an enforceable security interest;

i1 (B)  there is no present intention to take possession of the property; or
i1, (C)  the property is exempt by law from such dispossession or
disablement,
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Ms. Franco has suffered damages as a result of Ryan & Reed's violations of the FDCPA.

COUNT IV — Michigan Debt Collection Practices Act (Ryan & Reed)

Ms. Franco incorporates the preceding allegations by refercnee.

Ryan & Reed is a "regulated person” under the Michigan Debt Collcction Practices Act

("MDCPA"), M.C.L. § 445.251(g)(xi).

Ryan & Reed violated the Michigan Collection Practices Act, M.C.L. § 445.251 et seg.

include, but are not limited to, the following

a. Communicating with a debtor in a misleading or deceptive manner, such as using the
stationery of an attomey or credit bureau unless the regulated person is an attorney
oris a credit bureau and it is disclosed that it is the collection department of the credit
bureau, in violation of M.C.L. §445.252(a).

b. Making an inaccurate, misleading, untrue, or deceplive statement or claim in a
communication to collect a debt or concealing or not revealing the purpose of a
communication when it is made in connection with collecting a debt in violation of

M.C.L. §445.252(e).

=

Misrepresenting in a communication with a debtor one or more of the following in

violation of M.C.L. §445.252()..

1 The legal status of a legal action being taken or threatened.
ii. The legal rights of the creditor or debtor.
1. That the nonpayment of a debt will result in the debtor's arrest or

imprisonment, or the seizure, gamishment, attachment, or sale of the debtor's

property.
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1v. That accounts have been turncd over Lo innocent purchasers for value,

d Using a harassing, oppressive, or abusive method to colleet a debt, including causing
a telephone to ring or engaging a person in telephone conversation repeatedly,
continuously, or at unusual times or places which arc known o be inconvenient to
the debtor. All communications shall be made from 8 a.m. to 9 p.m. unless the
debtor expressly agrees in writing Lo communications at another time. All telephone
communications made from 9 p.m. to 8 a.m. shall be presumed to be made at an
inconvenient time in the absence of facts to the contrary in violation of M.C.L.
§445.252(n).

€, Using profane or obscene language in violation of M.C.L. §445.252(0).

f. Failing to implement a procedure designed to prevent a violation by an employee in
violation of M.C.L. §445.252(q).

g Employing a person required to be licensed under article 9 of Act No. 299 of the
Public Acts of 1980, being scctions 339.901 to 339.916 of the Michigan Compiled
Laws, to collect a claim unless that person is licensed under article 9 of Act No. 299
of the Public Acts of 1980 in violation of M.C L. §445.252(s).

Ms. Franco has suffered damages as a result of Ryan & Reed's violations of the Michigan

Collection Practices Act,

COUNT V — intentional Infliction of Kmotional Distress {(Rvan & Reed

Ms. Franco incorporates the preceding allegations by reference.

Ryan & Reed intentionally inflicted emotional distress on Ms. Franco,
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Such infliction was causcd by extreme and outrageous conduct, which was intentional or
reckless, and which caused scvere emotional distress.

3. M. Franco has been harmed by this intentional infliction of emotional distress in an amount
to be determined at trial,

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

34 Plaintiff demands trial by jury in this action.
DEMAND FOR JUDGMENT FOR RELIEF

35, Aecordingly, Ms. Franco requests that the Court grant:

a. Actual damages.
b. Statutory damages.
c. Statutory costs and attorney fees.

Respectfully Submitted,

Adam G. Taub (P48703)
Atlormey For Michelle Franco
24500 Northwestern Highway, Ste, 206
Southheld, MI 48075
(248) 746-3790
AdamlLaw(@Pop.Net
Dated: December 19, 2005

10
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Judge:
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